BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

January 14, 2025
6:30 p.m.

Board of Education Board Room
1300 17 Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfield, CA 93301

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Kern County Board of
Education can be inspected during normal business hours at the Kern County Superintendent of Schools Office,
located at 1300 17" Street, Seventh Floor, Bakersfield, California 83301.

An individual who requires disability related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and
service, in order to participate in the board meeting should contact the Superintendent’s Office at (661) 636-4617
(Government Code 54954.2).

This meeting is being held in an in-person format. Members of the public wishing to provide comments to the
Board can attend the meeting in person. Correspondence sent by mail or email to kchoe@kern.org before noon
on the date of the board meeting on subjects within the Board’s jurisdiction will be provided to the Board at the
meeting and made available for public inspection. Members of the public may also observe the meeting via
livestream at the following link: (1) Kern County Board of Education — YouTube.

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1 Call to order time p.m.
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance
1.3  Roll Call

Julie A. Beechinor, Area 1

Joe L. Marcano, Area 2

Mary M. Little, Area 3

Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr., Area 4

Lori Eskew, Area 5

James V. Robinson, Area 6

Lori J. Cisneros, Area 7

Violetamarysol Morales, Student Representative
Anai Valencia, Student Representative

Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

T
e

1.4  Adoption of the Agenda

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

1.5 Approval of the Minutes from December 17, 2024.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain




2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

The Board of Education appreciates comments from members of the public who have the opportunity to address

the Board on agenda items (before the Board’s consideration of the item) and on other matters within the Board's
jurisdiction.

To move the meeting business along efficiently, individual speakers are allofted up to three minutes each, and
the total time for comment on each agenda or other topic within the Board's jurisdiction will be limited to 20
minutes. All requests for public comment must be submitted prior to the start of the meeting. In exceptional
circumstances, the Board President may, with Board consent, reduce or increase the amount of time allowed for
public input and/or the time allotted for each speaker, when such adjustment is necessary to ensure full
opportunity for public input within the time allotted. Any such adjustments shall be done in an equitable manner,
so as to allow a diversity of viewpoints. The President may aiso ask members of the public with the same
viewpoint to select a few individuals to address the Board regarding that viewpoint.

To allow the Board to organize the public comments, persons wishing to speak will need to complete a form
before the board meeting begins, providing their name, contact information, and the agenda item or other topic
on the Board's jurisdiction on which they wish to speak. ltems not appearing on the agenda cannot, by law, be
the subject of board action.

3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS — NO ACTION TAKEN

31 JobsPlus! Program Presentation.

3.2 Discussion regarding the Ten Commandments.
Presentation by ACLU Chief Counsel Peter Eliasberg and Professor Nancy Meyer.

4.0 ACTION ITEMS

All consent agenda items for the Kern County Board of Education are considered to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion unless a board member requests separate action on a specific item. Approval is
recommended on all items listed.

4.1 Consent Agenda

41.1 Approval of Graduation Diplomas.
Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
42  General Business
421 Accept and File Williams Quarterly Report.
Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
422 Accept and File the 2023-24 Audit Report for GROW Charter.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

4.2.3 Accept and File the 2023-24 Audit Report for Wonderful College Prep Academy.
Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

4.2.4 Approval of the Resolution to the Kern County Bar Association for 2024-25 Mock Trial
Competitions.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain



5.0 REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

5.1 Members of the Board will report on various topics.

6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

6.1 The County Superiniendent will report on various topics.

7.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

71 Items to be considered for the next agenda.

8.0 ADJOURNMENT

8.1 Unless otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on February
11, 2025.

82 Time of adjournment p.m.



BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES | 5

December 17, 2024
6:30 p.m.

Board of Education Board Room
1300 17" Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfield, CA 93301

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.
Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Board Members Present
Julie A. Beechinor

Lori J. Cisneros

Lori Eskew

Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr.
Mary M. Little

Joe L. Marcano

James V. Robinson
Violetamarysol Morales

KCSOS Employees Present

Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

Christian Shannon, Deputy Superintendent

Steve Sanders, Chief of Staff

Merril Clanton, Senior Executive Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent

QOath of Office

Julie A. Beechinor — Area 1
Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr. — Area 4
Lori Eskew — Area 5

James V. Robinson — Area 6

s o »

Moment of Silence Observed for the passing of Dr. Kelly F. Blanton.

It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Ms. Cisneros to approve the agenda.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None



1.7 It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Ms. Cisneros to approve the following appointments
for the Organizational Meeting:

1.7.1 Board President — Mary M. Little
1.7.2 Board Vice President — Joe L. Marcano
1.7.3 Board of Trustees Representative — Lori Cisneros

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

2.1 Public Comments were heard from the following:

» Jess Sanders
» Dennis McLean
= Jason Rojas

3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS — NO ACTION TAKEN

3.1 Thanksgiving at the Blanton Education Center.
Public Comments were heard from the following relating to Informational item 3.2

Allan Krawter
Jess Sanders
Paula Bray

Tom Johnson
Dawn Wilder
Michael Poliack
Sydney O’Connor
Carolyn Bevers
Jeanine Adams
Ashley De La Rosa
Kale Dumler
Edgar Ortega
Nicholas Billing
Sarah Frost
Yvette Benton
Jeannie Parent
Rosa Lopez
Charies Showver
Linda Fiddler

J. Broder

Victoria Masini
Paul Linfesty
Nadine Escalante
Robert Davis
Virginia Goodman
Faith Darling
Precious Henley
Daniel Rodela
Julie Means

.....'..........O...........l



3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

Presentation on the Ten Commandments — Dr. Angelo Frazier and Senior Counsel Michael

Peffer.

2024-2025 Williams Legislation Annual Report.

4.0 ACTIONITEMS

Consent Agenda

411

41.2

General Business

421

422

It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Mr. Marcano to approve the Graduation

Diplomas.

Ayes:

Nayes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

None

Nane

None

It was moved by Mr. Marcano. seconded by Ms. Cisneros to approve the Kern County
Superintendent of Schools District English Learners Advisory Committee (DELAG)

Minutes.
Ayes:
Nayes:

Abstain:
Absent.

Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

None

None

None

It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Mr. Marcano to accept and file the First
Interim Report.

Ayes:

Nayes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Litile,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinseon

None

None

None

It was moved by Mr. Marcano, seconded by Ms. Beechinor to approve the Resolution of
the Kern County Board of Education Declaring Surplus Land to be Offered for Sale to
Public Entities and Nonprofits before Sale to the General Public.

Ayes:

Nayes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

None

None

None



4.2.3

424

It was moved by Mr. Marcano, seconded by Mr. Gonzalez to approve the Resolution
before the Kern County Board of Education and the Kern County Superintendent of
Schools in the Matter of Impoundment of Local Tax Revenues to Anticipate Pending
Claims and/or Litigation.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Ms. Eskew to approve the 2025 Regular
Board Meeting Schedule.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Cisneros, Ms. Eskew, Mr. Gonzalez, Jr., Ms. Little,
Mr. Marcano, and Mr. Robinson

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

5.0 REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

51

52

5.3

54

5.5

Mr. Gonzalez acknowledged the Arvin High School, We the People Team, for placing 1st
in the 22nd Congressional District.

Ms. Cisneros posed a question to Dr. Mendiburu regarding the next steps in the pursuit of
posting the Ten Commandments in classrooms. Dr Mendiburu clarified that the next step
would be for the board to agree to bring the item back as an action item. Additionally, Dr.
Mendiburu reviewed California Education Code 51511, which allows religious materials to
be displayed during the course of study. Ms. Cisneros asked Dr. Mendiburu if the board
would need to write a policy or if agreeing as a board would be sufficient to post or not
post the Ten Commandments. Dr. Mendiburu stated that the decision to post religious
materials would be at the board's discretion. Ms. Cisneros noted that she feels it is more
of a historical document, even though it is a religious document, stating that she feels this
is where most of the controversy stems from. Ms. Cisneros stated that it is part of the
foundation of our nation and that she wants to understand that if this is something that the
board wants, then the schools that the board has jurisdiction over have to post the Ten
Commandments. Dr. Mendiburu reiterated that according to California Education Law, the
materials can be displayed during the course of religious study. Ms. Cisneros
congratulated Julie Beechinor and Jose Gonzalez, Jr. for winning their seats again and
Lori Eskew and Jim Robinson for joining the board. She said that she was happy to
welcome you to the family.

Mr. Robinson stated that his question was asked and answered.
Mr. Marcano congratulated Lori, James, Julie, and Jose.

Ms. Eskew stated that she and her husband are Santa and Mrs. Claus and that they are
very busy, but she was able to rearrange their schedule to be sworn in. She stated that

she is happy to be here, that she thinks this will be a fun four years, and that she is glad
she's here.



5.6

5.7

58

Ms. Beechinor congratulated everyone who was elected or re-elected to the board.
Additionally, she congratulated the Frontier High Schoo! Varsity Football Team on their
CIF Championship. She wished everyone a happy holiday season and a Merry Christmas.
She stated she is looking forward to January and hopes that the board will look at issues
that truly reflect the needs and education of our students.

Ms. Morales stated that she had additional comments regarding the Ten Commandments
but would return her thoughts to the next board meeting. Ms. Morales said seeing Dr.
Mendiburu and Merril Clanton at the 85th Annual Kern Tax meeting was nice. She stated
that she was there with her fantastic group of peers from CTEC, recording and producing
a video for the event. She wishes all Kern County students to do well during their final
exams and put their finals in the hands of God, hopefully resulting in good grades.
Additionally, Ms. Morales said she knows there are a lot of seniors trying to get into
colleges and that she hopes every student trying to get into their dream college gets
accepted and that they go where they belong. She congratulated the new board members
and stated she wished more time to work with them.

Ms. Little stated that the Ten Commandments has been implemented in three states, not
to say that we will implement it, but just so everyone is aware. Some people commented
that the Supreme Court have repeatedly rejected the idea, Ms. Little stated that it wasn't
completely true and that the Court has gone back and forth on the issue. Currently, the
Supreme Courts seems to be leaning towards granting religious freedom, which is a plus
on our side if we were to implement this. Everyone is here to support children and just
because we may support the Ten Commandments doesn’'t mean we aren't supporting
children. Ms. Little stated that she learned from the Ten Commandments when she was
in public schools. Ms. Little stated that she attended the CSBA conference in Anaheim,
California with Dr. Mendiburu and Merril Clanton and had a nice time. She said that she
felt the conference was informative and that the topics were relevant. In conclusion, she
wished everyone a Merry Christmas.

6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

6.1

Dr. Mendiburu announced that CSBA recognized Mary Litile as a part of the planning
committee and that she did a phenomenal job bringing topics about County Boards of
Education. Dr. Mendiburu welcomed Lori and Jim to the board and said that he is looking
forward to working with them for the next four years. Additionally, he congratulated Julie
and Jose on their re-election. Dr. Mendiburu acknowledged the wonderful performance of
the Nutcracker that over 4,000 county students were able to attend and expressed his
appreciation for the partnership between KCSOS and the Nutcracker. Dr. Mendiburu
thanked Ms. Morales for her role at the Kern Tax meeting, stating that she and her CTEC
team did a great job. GROW Academy has invited the Kern County Board of Education to
visit their Shafter, CA campus, and we are working to coordinate an afternoon timeslot to
meet the needs of our trustees. In conclusion, Dr. Mendiburu wished everyone a Merry
Christmas.

7.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

7.1

A recommendation was made to further discuss the Ten Commandments and next steps
at the January 14, 2025, board meeting.



8.0 ADJOURNMENT

8.1 Unless otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on January
14, 2025, at 6:30 p.m.

8.2 The meeting was adjourned at 9:38 p.m.

John G. Mendiburu, Ed.D., Superintendent



2|

Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints
[Education Code § 35186]

L]

District / Program KCSOS / Attemative Education

Person compieting this form' Molly Mier Title: Director
Quarterly Report Submission Date: Oct 1, 2024 (for period Jul 1 — Sep 30)

April 1, 2025 {for period Jan 1 —Mar 31)

C

{check one) X Jan 1, 2025 (for period Oct 1 - Dec 31)
m]

o July 1, 2025 (for period Apr 1 —Jun 30}

Date for information to be reported publicly at govemning board meeting. Tuesday. January 14, 2025

Please chack the box that applies:

X No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarier
indicated above

u] Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated
above. The following chart summarizes the nature and resofution of these
complaints.

Total # of
General Subject Area Complaints # Resolved

# Unresolved

Texthooks and .
Instructional 0 0 0
b - -_Mat_eria!s —ee — — — 1 — e
Teacher Vacancy or 0 0 0
Mis-assignment
e [ ==l = e . | =
Facilities Conditions | 0 0 0
_— e e T._ — — — - — 4 i— — - - _L — — — — _—
TOTALS 0 | 0 0

— I = — SR S — —_—

Dr. John G. Mendiburu / Molly Mier
Print Name of District Superintendent / Program Administrator

DO
Signature of District Superintendent / Program Administrator

Once completed, send copy to District Advisory Services, KCSOS, 1300 17* Street, 6" Floor, Bakersfield (Faxd# 661-6364121)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CHARTER SCHOOLS:

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS ~ ARVIN (#1292}
GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS — SHAFTER (#1847}
GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS (#2149)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

OTHER INFORMATION
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER STATE COMPLIANCE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

o ~N o o A

18
19

20
21
22

23

24

26

29
33
35



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
\ ‘ CLAconnect.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools
Bakersfield, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grow Public Schools (the Schools), a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of

June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Schools as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Qur responsibiliies under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Schools and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Schools’ ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Claglobal.com/disclaimer
M



Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resufting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Schools’ ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matiers that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Schools’ financial statements as
a whole. The Arvin Campus, Shafter Campus, CMO, Grow Public Schools and Eliminations columns in
the statements of financial position, activities, functional expenses, and cash flows as well as the
supplementary information (as identified in the table of contents) accompanying supplementary
schedules, and the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements.

@)



Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the local education agency organization structure but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 3,
2024 on our consideration of the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro! over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness on the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting or on compiiance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Schools’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

J%KZM% LLZ

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 3, 2024



54

‘sjusUIalels feouelid o) sejon Builueduiodoe 8sg

LE6'/ED'ES - ¢ oc0/Zes $ L6V'9E6'91 g96€' LS 0OF 3 s}ossY 18N pue sajlqel el
LSF'0BS'LE - BE'LLY L QEL'ZYE'S ¥E6'0C6'r) sjossy 19N [ejoL
LOL A¥8 - - 9L¥'GLE GRZ'ZLS SUO[J2LSaY Jouod UHAA
054'2PR'0Z = 6LE'LLFL 22/'920'S YO YOV PL SUOIOUISaY Jouoq INCUIAA
S ERILME
08t LP6'LE - 1G9°GL8'Y 6SL'PES' LI vor IS¥'SL sanqen |eioL
122'G12'8¢T - BLZ'BEL'Y 059°'LZ1L°0Y 8SE'FIY'EL sapyIqer wia | -buoT el
L22'612°82 - 6l2BEL'Y 059'LZ1 01 BSE'VIF'E) 1eN ‘Anqer eses Bugelsdo
SILLITHAVIT WHIL-ONOT
£€G2'Z/9'E . BEV'DL) 80LTI¥'L 90L'€20'Z senIpIqel WaLng [ oL
1L99'0L | B - = 199'01LL juaung ‘Aujger asea Bunessdo
8ro'vEl - - L0G'¥ LL'OEL snuanay palsjeQg
P¥6'9Z¥'C - ¢ ger'olsl 8 202'89%) voE'28L'| ¢ saIger] peniooy pue ajgeded SjUnoooy
S3LLIFAYIT INJHEND
S13SSY 1IN ANV s3LLITIgvIn
LE6'JE9°ES - $ 9£0'/2¢'9 § /6% 9E6 9l g86E' /€ 0E $ s}essy [ejol
S65'891'7E = 952'09.'¥ L19°L¥STL 299'098'91 sjassy wla i -BuoT |ejol
055°6£2'8¢ 0gc'i6s'y oL¥'0Z1 0L 0Z8'Les'El Jessy asn-i0-ubiy Bunesado
S¥0'626'S - 9£6'291 292'1Z¥'2 Zre'vre’e 1oN uswdinbg pue Jue|d ‘Apadoid
S1ISSY WHIL-ONOT
OCE'6OF' 61 - 082'995°'L 028'¥6E'¥ Q8L /0G'EL sjessy Jualng |elol
gL¥'o0e - /GP'65 Z0L'¥S 008'26 sjessy JayjO pue sasusdx3 pledald
££0'0EL'E - - 86Z'G8%'} SeL 'Ol 8|0EAI209Y SJUNOJDY
teg'zelL 9l - $ gZEL08'l § 02¥'598°C LeL'0LL L $ sjusjeAnb3 yseo pue yseo
S138SVY ININEND
g13SSY
=TT FGRENE] s|ooyos OWND snduies sndwen
AHgnd MOIS J2yeys LAy

$Z02Z ‘0¢ ANNT
NOILISOd TVIONVNI 40 LNJW3L1VLS

STO0HOS 21M9nd MOYD



(g

IGr069'L2 $ - § 6ELWWLE $ - aclZpe s ¢§ 2 VEB'OEBYL $
9EC ¥96'61 - - SP0'90L ¢ PEZELGS T /96'9DEEL
: . 6.8 VIYL B8 LL¥' L) - -
gLL'ggL'L - - (999'¥60) ¥18'06L L96'629'|
L02'2¥8 - - - gl¥'GLE G8Z'Zes
vL'8.8 - - (099'v69) 86E'GLY 289°'160'L
/19'688'0S (Z/9°€60'%) - LOB'¥SL'S 909'691'L) Z8.'799'81
Z5E'P09'P (528°v06'c) - 629'6E0'L G80°65E'e coPrLL'Y
GOZ'GRE'ZE {1¥8'g81) - 217G 126'0L8°E L GLE'GPS'PL
LEO'99. /€ (Z19'€60't) - SEZ09r'y ¥00' L¥9'LL P9¥'09.'61
peEv'ZET {z/9'C60'Y) - g9e9'/ZL 'y L12°25) £6.L°6¥
Z81'8e8 s - ZES'LL €8 LLE L98'FLS
9£0'682 - - GO0 LL 9Zy'c0l 509'80 )
zeg'esL't - = ) LZ9°/96 112'918
98Z'eLL'E - - Z90'¥¥2 vie'681°'L 058'6.2'2
Z£9'8e8'0l - - B £26°108'S 60.°9£5'S
629'z.002 § - g - ¢ - ooL'vLO's ¢ 69¥'8SHOL $
lelol suoneuwl|3l s|jooYas CND sndwen sndwen
aljgnd moI9 Jayeys uAlY
202 "0 ANNT AIANT dVv3A

S3ILIAILOY 40 LNJW3LVLS
STTO0HOS 21718Nd MOYD

‘SJUaIBIR)S jBraueLd O SBlON BuAuedwoode 8sg

dV3IA 40 AN3 - S13SSY 13N
Jea jo Buuuibag - sjessy 18N
$13$SY L3N 40 d34SNVHL

$13SSVY 13N NI JONVHD

anusAsy 21.1S 1BYI0
:anuansy s1els
SNOILDINLSTY YONOQ HLIA S13S8V L3N

SNOILOIMLSTY
HONOQ LNOHLIM S13SSY 1IN NI 3ONVYHD

sosuadx3g g0 L
[elauan) pue Juswabeuely
sao1nes welbold

§3ASNadX3

sahusanay |BJ0L

anuanay J2Yl0
aLICOU| Jsa181U|

suoRNGUIUAD

anuanay xe| Auadoid narj-u|
‘anUBAdY [B207

sjuUsWafIuUT pue suein
anusasy |elapad

anuanay ae1s JByi0

ply 2lelg
:BnuaAsy 31ElS

SNOILD1SIN HONOA LNOHLIM ‘SaNNIAIY



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages

Pension Expense

QOther Employee Benefits

Payroll Taxes

Legal Expenses

Accounting Expenses
Instructional Materials

Other Fees for Services
Advertising and Promotion Expenses
Office Expenses

information Technology Expenses
Occupancy Expenses

Travel Expenses

Depreciation Expense

Insurance Expense

Other Expenses

Eiiminations

Total Expenses by Function

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Program Management

Services and General Eliminations Total
$ 18,168,868 $ 561,923 $ - $ 18,730,791
1,779,418 74,142 - 1,853,560
1,619,578 67,483 - 1,687,061
767,863 15,671 - 783,534
28,797 77,860 - 106,657
20,852 56,378 - 77,230
1,867,714 207,523 - 2,075,237
1,524,502 4,121,804 {(4,093,672) 1,552,634
119,318 29,830 - 149,148
27.289 73,783 - 101,072
173,410 468,850 - 642,260
2,243,783 1,624,808 - 3,868,591
379,715 - - 379,715
182,494 60,832 - 243,326
- 175,663 - 175,663
3,570,511 892,627 - 4,463,138
(188,847) (3,904,825) 4,093,672 -
$ 32,285,265 $ 4604352 3 - $ 36,889,617

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements.

®)



{2)

‘SjusWIeIe]S [BIoUeUlH 0] Sajon Buduedwoooe aag

¢ WvIA 40 AN3 - SINITVAINDA HSYD GNY HSVD

lea Jo Buiuuibag - sjusieainb3 yseo pue Ysed

SINT1YAINDI HSYD ANY HSVO NI 3ONVHD 13N

saAnoy Buigsaau] AQ pasn useD 18N

wawdinbg pue ‘ue|d ‘Auadoid Jo saseyaing
SIILIALLDY ONILSIANI WOdd SMOTd HSVYD

SORIANDY
Bunelado Aq (pesn) paplaold Ysed 18N

anuaaay pauela(]
sa|gqefed Auedwooia]
sali|Igel] paniody pue 3jgeied SjUNoodY
:salpgel” ul (asealnad) esealou]
s]9ssy JaU)0) pue sesuadxy pledald
ss|qealsday Auedilozlaiu]
2[gqeAIZDY SIUN0OTY
'5)assYy U1 asealoe(] (asealau))
$)8sSY JoN 4O I8jsuel] YseduoN
asuadx3 asesT YseouoN
uonenaidsg
‘saiagoy Buneladg Ag pepiacid YSED 18N 91
sjessy JeN ul abueys a|iounoay 03 sjusunsnipy
$ s)assy 18N ul abueyn
SIILIAILDY DONILYHIdO WO¥Hd SMOTd HSVD

¥88'2EL 9l $ £Z£'/06'L & - $  0ZF'SeRZ  $ LPL'0LL' LY
6L LOL'LE R o60'€6l'Z 168°G2L'S agy'z8.L'EL
(6e5'896 %) £28'10G°1 {9680°cB)'2) (LeF'0.2'T) (gge'zin'e)
{0/%'961 %) Toir'Lzl) : {102'€18'}) Te6.1027)
(9:7'961°%) ICYEANAD) - (L0zcL8')) Te6L'L02'2)
{BS0'TLL) 662'829'L {960'€61'Z) (0ET'26E) B89F'681
{85E°P50°Y) - s {IGr'6ae6'L) (L06'860C)
09.'7.6°) gEV'OLL (908'652) BEL'BOD'L 686°/10'L
16L2S (£5¥'68) 7697l {062'G) 7612
{698'268) - - (rze'81E) {59s'6ES)

- 6L6°69¢'L {616'69¢'1) E -

064'StL 668117l S 00’} /88T
QzE'SHE ) £09'9l A BEE'PFL
GLL'OZL L $ - ¢ (o99'v69) ¢ ¥$I8'06L $  196'6E9'1

elol suoneuIu3 sj004yog oW shdwied) sndiles
Mgnd M9 lsyeysg Uy

#20Z ‘0€ ANNC 3AN3 JdV3A
SMOTd HSYD 40 LNJWTLVYLS
STO0OHOS 21MgNnd MO¥D



NOTE 1

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Grow Public Schools (the Schools) is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and is
organized to manage and operate two public charter schools, Grow Public Schools - Arvin
and Grow Public Schools - Shafter. The Schools began serving students in August 2011
and August 2017, respectively. Grow Public Schools - Arvin and Grow Public Schools -
Shafter are sponsored by the Kem County Office of Education and Richland Union
Elementary School District, respectively (the Sponsors).

In May 2024, a new public charter school, Grow Public Schools, was created, where the
assets of the Charter Management Organization (CMO) were transferred as of June 30,
2024. Grow Public Schools will begin operations as of July 1, 2024 and will be a countywide
charter authorized under the Kern County Office of Education. The 2024-2025 plan is to
enroll Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten through Grade 7 students into the new charter
school, Grow Public Schools, with limited Grade 8 enroliment in Grow Public Schools - Arvin
and Grow Public Schools -Shafter. The 2025-2026 plan is to wind down operations of Grow
Public Schools - Arvin and Grow Public Schools -Shafter and have only the existing new
charter school, Grow Public Schools.

The Schools is funded principally through state of California public education monies
received through the California Department of Education and the Sponsors.

The charters may be revoked by the Sponsors for material violations of the charter, failure to
meet pupil outcomes identified in the charter, failure to meet generally accepted standards
of fiscal management, or violation of any provision of the law.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual method of accounting, and
accordingly reflect all significant receivables and liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(8)



NOTE 1

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Costs of providing the Schools' programs and other activities have been presented in the
statement of functional expenses. During the year, such costs are accumulated into
separate groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated among
program and support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of
benefit. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, pension expense,
other employee benefits, payroll taxes, other fees for services, office expenses, information
technology, and other expenses, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and
effort. Occupancy expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Schools defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on hand, demand
deposits, and liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Net Asset Classes

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-}
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor.
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that
resources be maintained in perpetuity. Gifts of iong-lived assets and gifts of cash
restricted for the acquisition of long-lived assets are recognized as restricted revenue
when received and released from restrictions when the assets are placed in service.
Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilied, or both.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable primarily represent amounts due from federal and state governments
as of June 30, 2024. Management believes that all receivables are fully collectible, therefore
no provisions for uncollectible accounts were recorded.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost, if purchased, or at estimated fair value, if
donated. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the asset. The estimated usefu! lives range from 1.25 to 40 years.

©)



NOTE 1

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contributed Assets and Services

Contributions of donated noncash assets are recorded at fair value in the period received.
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that require
specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically
need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at fair values in the period
received. There was no contributed assets or services in June 30, 2024.

Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are
levied on September 1 and are payable in two installments on or before November 1 and
February 1. Unsecured property taxes are not a lien against real property and are payable in
one instaliment on or before August 31. The County bills and collects property taxes for all
taxing agencies within the County and distributes these collections to the various agencies.
The sponsor agencies of the Schools are required by law to provide in-lieu property tax
payments on a monthly basis, from August through July. The amount paid per month is
based upon an allocation per student, with a specific percentage to be paid each month.

Compensated Absences

The Schools does not allow employees to carryover unused vacation. Accordingly, there
were no accumulated compensated absence benefits at June 30, 2024.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from the California Department of Education are conditional and
recognized as revenue by the School based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of
students. Revenue that is restricted is recorded as an increase in net assets without donor
restriction, if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the revenue is
recognized. All other restricted revenues are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restriction.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are restricted to specific use or future periods are reported as
contributions with donor restrictions. Restricted contributions that are received and released
in the same period are reported as promises to give without donor restrictions. Unconditional
promises to give expected to be received in one year or less are recorded at net realizable
value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in more than one year are
recorded at fair value at the date of the promise. Conditional promises to give (those with a
measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return) are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on which they depend are substantially
met.

(10)



NOTE 1

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Conditional Grants

Grants and contracts that are conditioned upon the performance of certain requirements or
the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses (barriers) are recognized as revenues in the
period in which the conditions are met. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when
the Schools has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as
deferred revenues in the statement of financial position. As of June 30, 2024, the Schools
have conditional grants of $134,648 of which $134,648 is recognized as deferred revenue in
the statement of financial position.

Other Revenue

Other revenue consist primarily of food services and other services. The performance
obligation for providing these services is simultaneously received and consumed by the
students; therefore, the revenue is recognized ratably over the course of the academic year.

Income Taxes

The Schools are a nonprofit entities exempt from the payment of income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue and Taxation Code
Section 23701d. Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes. Management
has determined that all income tax positions are more likely than not of being sustained
upon potential audit or examination; therefore, no disciosures of uncertain income tax
positions are required. The Schools is subject to income tax on net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to the exempt purposes. The Schools files an
exempt return and applicable unrelated business income tax return in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction and with the California Franchise Tax Board.

Leases

The Schools leases facilities and equipment. The Schools determines if an arrangement is a
lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (ROU)
assets, and operating lease liabilities on the statement of financial position. Finance leases
are included in financing ROU assets, and lease liabilities — financing on the statement of
financial position.

ROU assets represent the Schools’ right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and
lease liabilities represent the Schools’ obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on
the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of leases do not provide
an implicit rate, the Schools uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information
available at commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The
operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and excludes lease
incentives. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that the Schools will exercise that option. The Schools has elected to
recognize payments for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less as expense
as incurred and these leases are not included as lease liabilities or ROU assets on the
statement of financial position.

(1



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)

The Schools has elected not to separate nonlease components from lease components and
instead accounts for each separate lease component and the nonlease component as a
single lease component.

The Schools’ lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or
material restrictive covenants.

In evaluating contracts to determine if they qualify as a lease, the Schools considers factors
such as if the Schools has obtained substantiaily all of the rights to the underlying asset
through exclusivity, if the Schools can direct the use of the asset by making decisions about
how and for what purpose the asset will be used and if the lessor has substantive
substitution rights. This evaluation may require significant judgment.

The individual lease contracts do not provide information about the discount rate implicit in
the lease. Therefore, the Schools has elected to use a incremental borrowing rate
determined using a period comparable with that of the lease term for computing the present
value of lease liabilities.

Evaluation of Subsequent Events

The Schools has evaluated subsequent events through December 3, 2024, the date these
financial statements were available to be issued.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
Financial assets available for general expenditure are those without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date,
comprise of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 16,132,884

Accounts Receivable 3,130,033

Less: Net Assets With Donor Restrictions (847,701)
Total $ 18.415.216

As part of its liquidity management plan, the Schools monitors liquidity required and cash
flows to meet operating needs on a monthly basis. The Schools structures its financial
assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due.

(12)



NOTE 3

NOTE 4

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Schools maintain cash balances held in banks and revolving funds which are insured
up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, cash in
these accounts exceeds the insured amounts. The Schools have not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its
cash and cash equivalents.

The Schools invest excess cash in various types of investments. Balances in the Schools
invesiment accounts exceed the Securities Investors Protection Corporation insured limit.
The Schools have established guidelines relative to diversification and maturities that
maximize safety and liquidity. These guidelines are periodically reviewed and modified to
take advantage of trends in yields and interest rates. The Schools have not experienced any
losses in these accounts.

The Schools maintain a portion of its cash in the Kern County Treasury (the County). The
County pools these funds with those of other educational organizations in the county and
invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at costs which approximates fair value.
Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment losses are
proportionately shared by all funds in the pool. The County is authorized to deposit cash and
invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53648 et. seq. The funds
maintained by the County are either secured by federal depository insurance or
collateralized. The fair value of the Schools’ deposits in this pool as of June 30, 2024, as
provided by the pool sponsor was approximately $3,164,752.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant, and equipment in the accompanying financial statements are presented net
of accumulated depreciation. The Schools capitalizes all expenditures for land, buildings,

and equipment in excess of $5,000. Depreciation expense was $243,326 as of June 30,
2024,

The components of property, plant, and equipment as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Furniture , Fixtures, and Equipment $ 2,191,686
Leasehold Improvements 1,277,925
Construction in Progress 4,475,598
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization {2,016,164)

Total Property, Plant, and Equipment $ 5029045

(13)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTES5 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes.

Shafter
Arvin Campus Campus Total

Suhject to Specific Purpose
Nationa! School Lunch Program 532,285 5 315,416 3 847,701

NOTE6 FACILITIES LEASES

The Schools leases facilities with unrelated third parties and the lease terms are month to
month from July through October 2023. Lease expense under these lease agreements for
the year ended June 30, 2024 was $38,681.

NOTE7 OPERATING LEASES - ASC 842

The Schools leases equipment as well as certain operating and facilities for various terms
under long-term, non-cancelable lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates
through June 2051. Certain facility leases provide for increases in future minimum annual
rental payments based on defined increases in the Consumer Price Index, subject to certain
minimum increases. The following table provides quantitative information concerning the
Schools' lease for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Related Party External 2024 Total
Operating Lease Cost $ 1,577,998 $ 344,448 $ 1,822 446

Other Information:
Cash Paid for Amounts Included in
the Measurement of Lease Liabilities:
Operating Cash Flows from
Operating Leases $ 1575663 3 202,804 $ 1,778,567
Right-Of-Use Assets Obtained in
Exchange for New Operating Lease

Liabilities - 4,777,042 4.777,042
Weighted-Average Remaining Lease
Term - Operating Leases 27.9 years 19.6 Years 25.7 Years
Weighted-Average Discount Rate -
Operating Leases 4.89% 4.48% 4.89%

The Schools classifies the total undiscounted lease payments that are due in the next 12
months as current. A maturity analysis of annual undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities
as of June 30, 2024, is as follows:

(14)



NOTE 7

NOTE 8

NOTE 9

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

OPERATING LEASES — ASC 842 (CONTINUED)

Year Ending June 30 Relatied Party External 2024 Total

2025 $ 1,578,238 5 361,337 $ 1,939,575

2026 1,579,963 361,432 1,941,395

2027 1,675,837 342,843 1,918,680

2028 1,576,075 329,640 1,905,715

2029 1,575,462 346,174 1,921,636

Thereafter 34,723,250 5,716,471 40,439,721

Total Lease Payments 42 808,825 7,457,897 50,066,722
Less: Interest (19,104,863} (2,675,971) {21,680,834)

Present Value of Lease Liabilities $ 23,503,962 $ 4,881,926 $ 28,385,888

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Grimm Family Education Foundation

Barbara Grimm Marshall, Barry Goldner, and Sean McNally, Jim Camp, and Catherine
Grimm Gardiner are the Directors of the Grimm Family Education Foundation.

The Foundation provides school administrative support for the Edible Schoolyard Program
at no cost to Grow Public Schools (pursuant to the operating agreement between the Grimm
Family Education Foundation and Grow Public Schools).

RLG Land Foundation

RLG Land Foundation is a separate California nonprofit public benefit corporation, of which
Melissa Grimm, Catherine Card, and William Philimore are the Directors. RLG Land
Foundation acquired and developed both the Arvin and Shafter locations which is leased to
Grow Public Schools for the charter school. RLG Land Foundation leases are include in the
right-of-use asset and lease lability on the statement of financial position (see Note 7).

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT

Multiemployer Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Qualified employees are covered under multiemployer defined benefit pension plans
maintained by agencies of the state of California.

The risks of participating in these muitiemployer defined benefit pension plans are different
from single-employer plans because: (a) assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by
one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating
employers, (b) the required member, employer, and state contribution rates are set by the
California Legislature, and (c) if the Schools chooses to stop participating in the
multiemployer plan, it may be required to pay a withdrawal liability to the plan. The Schools
has no plans to withdraw from this multiemployer plan.

{15}



NOTE 9

NOTE 10

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS)
Plan Description

The Schools contributes to the State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing
multiemployer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered
by STRS. Plan information for STRS is not publicly available. The plan provides retirement,
disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state
statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers’

Retirement Law. According to the most recently available Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report and Actuarial Valuation Report for the year ended June 30, 2023, total STRS plan
net assets are $316.9 billion, the total actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits
is $455 billion, contributions from all employers totaled $7.738 billion, and the plan is 75.9%
funded. The Schools did not contribute more than 5% of the total contributions to the plan.

Copies of the STRS annual financial reports may be obtained from STRS, 7667 Folsom
Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95826 and www.calstrs.com.

Funding Palicy

Active plan members hired before January 1, 2013 are required to contribute 10.25% of their
salary and those hired after are required to contribute 10.205% of their salary. The Schools
is required to contribute an actuariaily determined rate. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers'
Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for year ended June 30, 2024
was 19.10% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are
established and may be amended by state statute.

The Schools’ contributions to STRS for the past three years are as foliows:

Required Percent
Year Ending June 30 Contribution Contributed
2022 $ 1,121,547 100%
2023 $ 1,647.801 100%
2024 $ 1,853,778 100%

CONTINGENCIES, RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Schools have received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement
would not be material.

(16)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 11 TRANSFER OF ASSETS AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In May 2024, a new public charter school, Grow Public Schools, was created, where the
assets of the Charter Management Organization (CMO) were transferred as of June 30,
2024.

Grow Public Schools will begin operations as of July 1, 2024 and will be a countywide
charter authorized under the Kern County Office of Education. The 2024-2025 plan is to
enroll Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten through Grade 7 students into the new charter
school, Grow Public Schools, with limited Grade 8 enroliment in Grow Public Schools - Arvin
and Grow Public Schools -Shafter. The 2025-2026 plan is to wind down operations of Grow
Public Schools - Arvin and Grow Public Schoois -Shafter and have only the existing new
charter school, Grow Public Schools.

(17



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Arvin Campus:

Transitional Kindergarten

Kindergarten
Grade 1
Grade 2
Grade 3
Grade 4
Grade 5
Grade 6
Grade 7
Grade 8

Shafter Campus:
Transitional Kindergarten

Kindergarten
Grade 1
Grade 2
Grade 3
Grade 4
Grade 5
Grade 6
Grade 7
Grade 8

GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Instructional Minutes

Traditional

Requirement Actual Calendar Days Status
36,000 61,995 180 In compliance
36,000 61,995 180 In compliance
50,400 64,735 180 In compliance
50,400 64,735 180 In compliance
50,400 65,460 180 In compliance
54,000 65,460 180 In compliance
54,000 65,460 180 In compliance
54,000 65,460 180 In compliance
54,000 59,940 180 In compliance
54,000 59,940 180 In compliance
36,000 61,785 179 In compliance
36,000 61,785 179 in compliance
50,400 64,545 179 In compliance
50,400 64,545 179 In compliance
50,400 65,265 179 In compliance
54,000 65,265 179 In compliance
54,000 85,265 179 In compliance
54,000 65,265 179 In compliance
54,000 59,730 179 in compliance
54,000 58,730 179 In compliance

See accompanying independent Auditors’ Report and the Notes to Supplementary Information.

(18)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Second Period Report Annual Report
Classroom Classroom
Based Total Based Total
Arvin Campus:
Grades TK/K-3 341.60 342.37 342.38 343.11
Grades 4-6 235.79 236.17 236.56 236.84
Grades 7-8 168.65 169.18 168.29 168.78
ADA Totals 746.04 747.72 747.23 748.73
Shafter Campus:
Grades TK/K-3 354.76 354.76 354.49 354.49
Grades 4-6 246.46 245.46 24588 24569
Grades 7-8 152.74 152.74 152.76 152.76
ADA Totals 753.96 753.96 752.94 752.94

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report and the Notes to Supplementary information,
{19)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Arvin Shafter

Campus Campus
June 30, 2024 Annuai Financial Report Fund Balances (Net Assets) $ 14,938,491 $ 5,342138

Adjustments and Reclassifications:
Increase (Decrease) of Fund Balance (Net Assets):

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 23,604 14,206
Operating Right-of-Use Asset 109,108 -
Accounis Payable (23,606) (25,640)
Deferred Revenue - 11,434
Lease Liability (110,661) -
Net Adjustments and Reclassifications (1,557) -
June 30, 2024 Audited Financial Statement Fund Balances (Net Assets) $ 14,936,934 $ 5342138

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report and the Notes to Supplementary information.
{20)



{12
-uoneLwoLy Apjusuieiddng o) $8joN 8y pue voday sioppny juapuedspuy Buidueduwioode aas

-a|gqealjdde Jou 10 s|ge|ieAe Ajpess jou Jsquinu Aue ybnoayrssed - vIN

9geelle § sainypusdx3 [elepsd [e1o0]
B8GG'08Y'| aunynouby jo Juswpedsq “S 1 18104
8557087 1 vIN 555701 J8i8n|g sweibold UoHUINN PIYO

-uoneanp3 1o Juswipedaq eluoles wol4 weibold ybnowy | -ssed
asnynouby go juswmedaq 's'n

82.1'2¢7'C uoneonp3 jo justupedad ‘S fejoL
SP9'v68 19V SIHVYO) 10V AlNdag diWousdg pUe el PIV STUIABUOIO] [BI0 L
Gr9've8 6L-AINOD 65551 NsZyve pung (Il ¥ASS3) 11l Joney AousBiawig jooyog Arepucdsg pue Aiejuaws|3
(19 SIHVYD) 19 Anoeg dlWouodT pue ‘aifey ‘pPIy SNUABUOIOD
Z90'v¥e viN W28z v8 (5dSD) Weis) uones|dey [004IS JBHeYD
211'0G€ J181sn|0 uoieanpd jeoeds |ejol
£11'05¢ 6.EE1 120'v8 J12)8n|D YIA| - uoyeonp3 Jeloads
v/N verve JuaLIYoUUT AWwapedy ¥ Hoddng Juspnls 'y Med ‘Al 3L
Lrl'69 ovEVL GoE'vB Aoualoiold ysiBug paywi ‘| eplL
o9v0'L9 LrEvL L9E'V8 Aylenp 1syoea | Buinoidui| v Hed 'l @il
1147109 $ geerl oLov8 pa1os|BaN pUE SWODUI-MOT "SIURIS) Jlseqd 'Y Hed '| SLL

10Y SpavoIng Juepnis Aleng
:uoijesnpd Jo juswiyedaq eluiojifeD wold weiboid ybBnouyy-ssed
uoneosnp3 jo Juawuedsq 'sn

salnypuadx3 UOEDYIILAP] TaqUInN 1agquiny 3L 1SN0 1o weibold
[eiopa4 plemy BulAusp] Aiug Buisn 10jUEIS) YBnoly | -ssed/ioe.s) [erapa]
[EUOCIIPPY ybnouy-ssed aouesIssy

$Z0Z ‘0¢ NN A3ANA JVIA
SANVMY TTv¥3a34 40 STAUNLIANIAXT 40 3TNATHOS
STOO0HJS 2IMand MOYD



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2024

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the
Schools and whether the Schools complied with the provisions of California Education
Code.

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the
Schools. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the
basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to charier schools. This schedule
provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels.

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets of the charter
schools as reported on the Annual Financial Report form to the audited financial statements.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of the Schools under programs of the federal government for the year
ended June 30, 2024. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of operations of
the Schools, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of the Schools.

INDIRECT COST RATE

The Schools has elected to use a rate other than the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost
rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

(22)



OTHER INFORMATION



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Grow Public Schools (the Schools) is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and is organized
to manage and operate a public charter school. The Schools began serving students in 2011 and are
sponsored by the Kern County Office of Education {the Sponsor) for the Arvin Campus and the
Richland Union Elementary School District (the Sponsor) for the Shafter Campus.

The charter school number for the Arvin Campus is: 1292.
The charter school number for the Shafter Campus is: 1847.

In May 2024, a new public charter school, Grow Public Schools, was created. Grow Public Schools will
begin operations as of July 1, 2024 and will be a countywide charter authorized under the Kern County
Office of Education. The charter school number for the Grow Public Schools is: 2149,

The board of directors and the administrators as of the year ended June 30, 2024 were as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Member Office Term Expires
Tom Mestmaker Chair May 26, 2026
Manuel Pantoja Secretary & Arvin Community Rep March 27, 2025
Matt Look Schools Parent Rep October 23, 2024
Ernie Unruh Member August 2024
Kristen Watson Member September 27, 2024

ADMINISTRATORS

Doc Ervin Chief Executive Officer, Grow Public Schools
Steve McClain Chief Business Officer
Jenny Bard Principal, Grow Public Schools — Arvin
Lacie Harris Principal, Grow Public Schools — Shafter

{23)



CliftonLarsonAlien LLP
k A CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Grow Public Schoois
Bakersfield, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Grow Public
Schools (the Schools), a nonprofit California public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement
of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and
functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated December 3, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Schools’ internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normat course of performing their assigned functions, {0 prevent or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a
combination of deficiencies in internai control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Schools financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

CLAglgbal. com/fdistlaimer
(24)



Board of Directars
Grow Public Schools

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Schools’ financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Schools’ internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Schools’ intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

MZZP

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 3, 2024

(25)



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
\ A CLAconnect.com

»

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDE

Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools
Bakersfield, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Grow Public Schools’ (the Schools) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the Schools’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.
The Schools major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Schools complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2024

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under
those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Schools and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Schools compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Schools federal programs.

ClLAglobal.comy/disclaimer
{28)




Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Schools compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not defecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Schools compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

« exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Schools compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

« obtain an understanding of the Schools internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

(27)



Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

WMM LLZ

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 3, 2024

(28)



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
\ A CLAconnect.com

»

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools
Bakersfield, California

Report on Compliance
Opinion on State Compliance

We have audited Grow Public Schools (the Schools) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements applicable fo the Schools described in the 2023-2024 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals
Panel for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Schools' appliable State compliance requirements are
identified in the table below.

In our opinion, the Schools complied with the laws and regulations of the state programs referred to
above in all material respects for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 2023-2024 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the
Education Audit Appeals Panel. Our responsibilities under those standards and 2023-2024 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the
Education Audit Appeals Panel are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Schools and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the Schools’ compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal controt over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Schools’ state programs.

CLAglobal. com/disclaimer

(29)



Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Schools’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and 2023-2024 Guide for Annual Audits of K-
12 local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Schools’ compliance with the requirements of the government program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and 2023-2024
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Schools' compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

«  Obtain an understanding of the Schools’ internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with 2023-2024 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

{30)



Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools

Compliance Requirements Tested

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to
determine the Schools’ compliance with the laws and regufations applicable to the following items:

Procedures
Description Performed
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:
Proposition 28 Arts and Music in Schools Yes
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Yes
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable’
immunizations Not Applicable?
Educator Effectiveness Yes
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) Not Applicable?
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant (CTEIG) Not Applicable?
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Yes
Transitional Kindergarten Yes
Charter Schools:
Attendance Yes
Mode of Instruction Yes
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study Yes
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction Not Applicable®
Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based Yes
Charter School Facility Grant Program Yes

Not Applicable’: The School did not report ADA pursuant to Education Code section 51749.5.

Not Applicable?; The School did not have any charter school subject to audit of immunizations as listed
in the California Department of Public Health (COPH) website as listed in the 2023-2024 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting.

Not Applicable3: The School did not receive a CTEIG allocation for the audit year.

Not Applicable*: The School did not receive Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant funds for the audit
year.

Not Applicables: The School did not report more than 20% of its ADA as generated through
nonclassroom-based instruction {independent study).

(31)



Board of Directors
Grow Public Schools

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit atiention from those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of

the 2023-2024 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California
December 3, 2024

(32)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section | — Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmaodified
2. Internal control over financial reporting:
« Material weakness{es) identified? yes
« Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes
3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes
Federal Awards
1. Internal control over major federal programs;
 Material weakness{es) identified? yes
s Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes no
Identification of Major Federal Programs
Assisting Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.425U Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Il
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no

(33)



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

All audit findings must be identified as one or more of the following categories:

Five Digit Code

10000
20000
30000
40000
42000
43000
50000
60000
61000
62000
70000
71000
72000

Finding Types

Attendance

Inventory of Equipment

Internal Control

State Compliance

Charter School Facilities Program
Apprenticeship

Federal Compliance
Miscellaneous

Classroom Teacher Salaries
Local Control Accountability Plan
Instructional Materials

Teacher Misassignments

School Accountability Report Card

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards.

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Programs

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Section IV — Findings and Questioned Costs — State Compliance

There were no findings or questioned costs related to state awards for June 30, 2024.

34



GROW PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Financial Statements:

There were no findings and questioned costs related to the basic financial statements in the prior year.

Federal Awards:

There were no findings and questioned costs related to the federal awards in the prior year.

State Awards:

2023-001 Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts 40000

Criteria: Education code section 42238.02 (b)(2) requires a charter school to submit its enrolled free
and reduced-price meal eligibility, foster youth and English learner pupil-level records for enrolied pupils
using the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CalPADS). The CalPADS 1.17 and
1.18 reports should accurately report the number of students eligible for free and reduced-price meals
and those identified as “English Learners.”

Condition: During our testing of Grow Public Schools - Arvin, we compared students’ family income
per Free and Reduced Price Meal (FRPM) eligibility applications to the Income Eligibility Scales for
2022-23. We found 1 student out of 51 students selected for review, that was inaccurately reported as
eligible for free price meals. The error identified was extrapolated to the population of the free and
reduced eligible pupils, resulting in 4 pupils.

Cause: Grow Public Schools - Arvin provided meal applications for the student that qualified the
students as paid and did not support the free or reduced classification that was submitted to CalPADS.
The error was identified due to lack of oversight for Grow Public Schools - Arvin in regards to verifying
meal applications

Status: Implemented and remediated during the year ended June 30, 2024.

35






Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Wonderful College Prep Academy

(Wonderful College Prep Academy — Delano No. 1078
Wonderful College Prep Academy — Lost Hills No. 1851)

EideBailly

eidebailly.com



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Table of Contents
June 30, 2024

INAEPENAENt AUdIEOI'S REPOTT ... cvcrrrrciceecrtitiatia s et b s s a4 s 1

Financial Statements

Statement OF FINANCIAl POSITION . oiiivt ettt ieeie et e e eeceese s sm e sarer st o samtem e e b e ar e e s e b eas e pam o s e s s e e db ST n s s e s et e e 4
AT R NI OF ACTIVIEIES . vetee s eeeeeieeeeeeestesssessstersessassmeeseeseeaaseesEesseraamb e or2masmem s oe b e e AR S e e Lt oo < amneoame s hhd e e bR e s ann e st s s 5
StatemMENnt OF FUNCHIONE] EXPENSES. cuveviireertsrerertreereasbatisb s sb st rbs e saE oo ar e rr s s st e £ e 6
STALEIMBNT OF CASH FIOWS o cveeiieiiitesisereeeeeeeeeeeiamteebeaasbeesamee s sm st eman e s b b s eeaaE e s g e smE e te et r e s e b Ao L ae AL e s dR T rr Ty S se s R s 7
NOLES 10 FINANCIA] STALEIMIBIIIS o evvee e cveeeeeeesivtesieesstessreseasemeeesmesabeeirtroan e s srn ey ss e e e bbb s 4P ad AL e rE e e b e baREanE e e s b a e e T e n R e et 8

Supplementary Information

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards ... 18
Schedule of Average Daily AHENOANCE .. ...t b s 19
SChedule Of INSTIUCTIONG] TITTIE «oivvtiir v irerr e eeeteirt et rs et c e e e ree e e s SR e R e b e e b e st e e e b LR b Fha e s s et an s 20
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements..........ccooeeiein 22
Combining Statement of FINancial POSHION ..ot 23
Combining Staterment Of ACHIVITIES ......co.coiciiiiir e 24
Notes to Supplementary INFOrMatioN ...t 25

Other Information
Local Education Agency Organization Structure {Unaudited) ... 27
Independent Auditor's Reports

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing

e T LT 12 1 ae - RRTE TR U T OO TP O P PP RIY PITEI PO RE PR 28
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control over

Compliance Required by the Uniform GUItANCE ..o s 30
Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance and on Internal Control Over Compliance .......occvveeeeiiennn 33

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

SUMMATY Of AULIEOIS RESUIS....coeieerrerceite ettt e e S 37
FiNancial STAtEMENE FINTINES v.eieeierieerrre ettt v sbs b e ea e s s rE e e aE a4 P e s s e e o TR et 38
Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs............. tveneinnnasuoantheonrsaranses st one SR < e et st enan T e e cn ke s 39
State Compliance Findings and Questioned COSTS...vu e 40

Summary Schedule of Prior AUdit FINAINGS.....cciiivmiiriinn i 41



EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

Governing Board
Wanderful College Prep Academy
Delano, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wonderful College Prep Academy (the Organization)

(a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position
as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Wonderful College Prep Academy as of June 30, 2024, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

What inspires you, inspires us. eidebuilly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd , Ste 300  Rancho Cucamonge, CA 917303831 7909 466 4410  F 909 466 4431 EOE



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve coilusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
apinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern fora
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the pianned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying supplementary information such as the schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR} Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and other supplementary
information on pages 18-26 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required



part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards and other supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the financial statements. The other
information comprises the Local Education Agency Organization Structure but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,
2024 on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

@/ﬁm/m%

Rancho Cucamonga, California
December 12, 2024



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2024

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Receivables
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Praperty and equipment
Operating lease right-of-use asset
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advance
Current portion of operating lease liability

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Operating lease liability, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 6,772,501
11,900,367
472,056

[ LR At

19,144,924

— e

3,931,267
144,336

4,075,603

$ 23,220,527

$ 3,912,114
615,816
6,549,063
78,245

11,155,238

66,080

11,221,328

11,999,199

S 23,220,527




Wonderful College Prep Academy
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Support and Revenues

Local Control Funding Formula $ 34,166,256
Federal revenue 8,256,856
QOther state revenue 13,961,486
Local revenues 4,228,611
Total support and revenues 60,613,209
Expenses
Program services 52,038,553
Management and general 6,812,074
Total expenses 58,850,627
Change in Net Assets 1,762,582
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 10,236,617
Net Assets, End of Year S 11,999,199

See Notes to Financial Statements 5



Wonderful College Prep Academy

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2024
Program Management Total
Services and General Expenses

Salaries S 26,238,439 S 3,570,118 S 29,808,557
Employee benefits 3,916,929 532,365 4,449,294
Payroll taxes 5,638,066 179,208 5,817,274
Fees for services 1,996,623 1,198,492 3,195,115
Office expenses 1,629,731 124,482 1,754,213
Information technology 1,285,301 11,938 1,297,239
Occupancy 3,335,919 518,473 3,854,392
Travel 336,026 55,477 391,503
Conferences and meeting 507,957 - 507,957
Depreciation and amortization 808,128 121,673 1,019,801
Insurance 398,332 54,189 452,521
Other expenses 811,931 161,929 973,860
Capital outlay 1,213,875 - 1,213,875
Special education 345,759 - 345,759
Instructional materials 628,515 - 628,515
Nutrition 2,247,736 - 2,247,736
District oversight fees 609,286 283,730 893,016

Total functional expenses S 52,038,553 S 6,812,074 S 58,850,627

See Notes to Financial Statements 6



Wonderfu! College Prep Academy
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from (used for) operating activities
Depreciation and amartization expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Receivables
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advance

Net Cash from {used) Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment

Net Change in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 1,762,582

3,525,661

879,164
(222,319)
8,789
(2,963,060}
(392,570)
(56,089)

2,542,158

(5,246,548)

(2,704,390}
9,476,891

S 6,772,501




Wonderful College Prep Academy

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Note 1- Principal Activity and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Wonderful College Prep Academy {the Organization} is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and is
organized to manage and operate public charter schools. The Organization formed two charter schools,
Wonderful College Prep Academy — Delano (WCPA Delano} and Wonderful College Prep Academy - Lost Hills
(WCPA Lost Hills). The Charter Schools are funded principally through State of California public education monies
received through the Department of Education. The Charter Schools may be revoked by the Sponsor for material
violations of the charter, failure to meet pupil outcomes identified in the charter, failure to meet generally
accepted standards of fiscal management, or violation of any provision of the law.

The Organization seeks to provide students with a foundation for future pursuit of STEAAM (Science,
Technology, Engineering, Agriculture, Arts, and Mathematics) education, prepa ring and inspiring generations of
learners to meet the challenges of the globa! society through innovation, collaboration, and creative problem
solving. Graduates of the Organization will be prepared to earn a college degree and have a career pathway in
life.

The vision of the Organization is to offer students:

Wonderful College Prep Academy (WCPA) is a rigorous, inspiring and community-based learning environment
that ensures all students are cared for and graduate with coliege-level academic knowledge, critical thinking
skills, healthy habits and personal efficacy to thrive - and to be transformational leaders in the Central Valley and
beyond.

Wonderful College Prep Academy offers all students:

¢ A strong Common Core-aligned academic program focused on science, technology, engineering,
agriculture, arts, and mathematics.

e A richer inter-disciplinary approach to learning that provides students real-world application of their
learning.

« Opportunities to enroll in college-level courses through the Early College Pathway program beginning their
freshman year of high school through the dual enrollment partnership with Bakersfield College.

e Job shadow internship opportunities are available for all students in the pathway programs.

Wonderful College Preparatory Charter - Delano
Charter schoo! number authorized by the State: 1078



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

WCPA Delano opened on August 3, 2009, and is located at 2070 Veneto Street, Delano, California 93215,
petitioned through Kern County Office of Education and was approved on September 11, 2018 for an additional
five-year period beginning on July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2024. The charter school currently services 1,857
students in grades transitional kindergarten through twelfth.

wWonderful College Preparatory Charter — Lost Hills
Charter school number authorized by the State: 1851

WCPA Lost Hills opened on August 15, 2017, and is located at 14848 Lamberson Avenue, Lost Hills, CA 93248,
petitioned through Kern County Office of Education and was authorized for a five-year period ending 2022, The
charter school currently services 538 students in grades transitional kindergarten through twelfth.

Pursuant to California Education Code {EC) Section 47607.4, which was amended by Senate Bill 114, all charter
schools whose term expires on or between lanuary 1, 2022, and June 30, 2025, inclusive, have their term
extended by two years, and all charter schools whose term expires on or between January 1, 2024, and June 30,
2027, inclusive, have their term extended by one additional year. WCPA Delano’s charter term will expire on
June 30, 2027. WCPA Lost Hills’ charter term will expire August 30, 2025. On November 12, 2024, WCPA Lost
Hills was approved by the Kern County Office of Education for an additional five-year period beginning on July 1,
2025 through June 30, 2030.

The Organization provides services such as education, encompassing instruction, student and staff support
activities, facilities maintenance and operations, and food services. Supporting services include management
and general services which are the Organization’s overall related administrative activities.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit
organizations. Revenues are recognized as discussed below, and expenditures are recognized in the accounting
period in which the liability is incurred.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to
donor restrictions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor {or certain grantor) restrictions. Some donor
imposed (or grantor) restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. The Organization did not have net assets with donor
restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2024.



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which exceed federally insured limits. Accounts are
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor, per insured bank,
for each account ownership category. At June 30, 2024, the Organization had approximately $7,029,399, in
excess of FDIC-insured limits.

Receivables and Credit Policies

Receivables consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for educational programs. Management
determines the allowance for uncollectable receivables based on historical experience, an assessment of
economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Receivables are written off when deemed
uncollectable. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been established, as the Organization deems all amounts
to be fully collectable. Substantially all outstanding receivables as of June 30, 2024 are due from state and/or

federal sources related to grant contributions and are expected to be collected within a period of less than one
year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 30 years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold
improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts, and any
remaining gain or loss is included in the statement of activities. Cost of maintenance and repairs that do not
improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed currently.

The Organization reviews the carrying values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future
cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment
loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of
asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2024.

Right-of-Use Leased Assets and Liabilities

Right-of-use leased assets and the related liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date and
represent the Organization’s right-of-use an underlying asset and lease obligations for the lease term. Right-of-
use leased assets are measured at the initial value of the lease liability plus any payments made to the lessor
before the commencement of the lease term, less any lease incentives received from the lessor at or before the
commencement of the lease term, plus any initial direct costs necessary to place the lease asset into service.
Right-of-use leased assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying
asset using the straight-line method. The amortization period varies among the leases.

10



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Operating funds for the Organization are derived principally from state and federal sources. The Organization
receives state funding based on each of the enrolled student’s average daily attendance (ADA} in its school.
Contributions are recognized when cash or notification of an entitlement is received.

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable
qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring
qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the statement of financial position.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and fundraising and
development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services
because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles.

Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Donated professional services are
recorded at the respective fair values of the services received. No significant contributions of such goods or
services were received during the year ended June 30, 2024.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report categories of expenses that are attributed to program service activities or
supporting services activities such as management and general activities and fundraising and development
activities. The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited based on management’s estimates. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, as
well as salaries and wages, benefits, payroll taxes, and other, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of
time and effort.

11



Wonderfu! College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Inceme Taxes

The Organization is organized as a California nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code
as an organization described in Section 501(c}(3), and qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction. It is
also exempt from State franchise and income taxes under Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and
Taxation Code. The Organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
{(Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. The Organization determined that it is not
subject to unrelated business income tax and has not filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return
{Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Management believes that the Organization has appropriate support for any tax positions taken affecting its
annual filing requirements, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the
financial statements. The Organization would recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits and liabilities in income tax expense if such interest and penalties are incurred.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions believed by management to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, no losses have been
experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is considered to be limited
due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from
governmental agencies supportive of the Organization’s mission.

Note 2 - Liguidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:

Cash S 6,772,501
Receivables 11,900,367
Total $ 18,672,868

12



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available
as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations become due.

Note 3- Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2024:

Land improvements S 112,395
Building improvements 228,389
Building 24,580
Computer and equipment 7,662,825
8,028,189

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {4,096,922)
Total 5 3,931,267

Note 4 - Leases

The Organization leases equipment at various terms under long-term non-cancelable operating lease
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2027 and provide for renewal options ranging from 1
year to 3 years. The Organization includes in the determination of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities any
renewal options reasonably certain to be exercised. The Organization’s operating lease provides for increases in
future minimum annual rental payments. Additionally, the operating lease agreement requires the Organization
{0 pay real estate taxes, insurance, and repairs.

The weighted-average discount rate is based on the discount rate implicit in the lease. The Organization has
elected the option to use the risk-free rate determined using a period comparable to the lease terms as the

discount rate for leases where the implicit rate is not readily determinable. The Organization has applied the
risk-free rate option to the real property and equipment classes of assets.

The Organization has elected the short-term lease exemption for all leases with a term of 12 months or less for
bath existing and ongoing operating leases to not recognize the asset and liability for these leases. Lease

payments for short-term leases are recognized on straight-line basis.

The Organization elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for
equipment leases.

13



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Total lease costs for the year ended June 30, 2024 were as follows:
Operating lease cost $ 87,603
The following summarizes the weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate:

Weighted-average remaining lease term

Operating leases 1.38 Years

Woeighted-average discount rate

Operating leases 1.72%

The future minimum fease payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms greater than one year
are listed below as of June 30, 2024:

June 30, 2024

Operating
2025 5 81,304
2026 64,320
2027 2,706
Total lease payments 148,330
Less interest {3,995)
Present value of lease liabilities S 144,335

Note 5- Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are members of the California State Teachers’

Retirement System (CalSTRS).

14



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The details of each plan are as follows:
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)
Plan Description

The Organization contributes to the State Teachers Retirement Plan (STRP} administered by the California State
Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). STRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement
system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the State Teachers’ Retirement Law. If a participating employer stops contribution to the plan,
the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers as all plan assets
are held by the plan and all benefit obligations are borne by the STRP.

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2022, annual actuarial valuation report, Defined
Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information are publicly available
reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at: http://www.calstrs.com/member-
publications.

Benefits Provided

The STRP provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members’
final compensation, age and years of service credit. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five
years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after
January 1, 2013, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The
normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0% of final compensation for each year of credited service.

The STRP is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, Cash
Balance Benefit Program and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray
reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the State is
the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the State is both an employer and nonemployer
contributing entity to the STRP.

The Organization contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program; thus, disclosures are not included
for the other plans.

15



Wonderful College Prep Academy

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2024, are summarized as follows:

STRP Defined Benefit Program

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 2.0%-2.4% 2.0%-2.4%
Required employee contribution rate 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rate 19.10% 19.10%
Required state contribution rate 10.828% 10.828%

Contributions

Required member, the Organization, and State of California contributions rates are set by the California
Legislature and Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. The contribution rates are expressed as a
level percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. In accordance with AB 1469, employer
contributions into the CalSTRS will be increasing to a total of 19.1% of applicable member earnings phased over
a seven-year period. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2024, are presented above
and the Organization’s total contributions were $4,744,413.

On Behalf Payments

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of Wonderful College Prep Academy. These
payments consist of State General Fund contributions to CalSTRS in the amount of $1,557,186 (10.828% of
annual payroll). Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these amounts
are to be reported as revenues and expenditures. Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded in these
financial statements.

Social Security
Public sector employees who are not members of their employer’s existing retirement system (CalSTRS or

CalPERS) are covered by social security or an alternative plan. The Organization has elected to use the social
security as its aliernative plan.

16



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

403(b) Tax Deferred Annuity Plan

The Organization sponsors a tax-deferred annuity plan ({the Plan) qualified under fRC Section 403(b} covering
substantially all full-time employees. The Plan provides that employees who have attained the age of 21 and
completed one year of service may voluntarily contribute from 3% to 10% of their earnings to the Plan, up to the
maximum contribution allowed by the IRS. Employer contributions are discretionary and are determined and
authorized by the Governing Board each plan year. During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Qrganization
matched employee voluntary contributions up to 6%, resulting in contributions to the Plan of $501,872.

Note 6 - Contingencies, Risks, and Uncertainties

The Organization has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are su bject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate disallowances under terms of the grants, it is
believed that any reimbursement, if required, would not be material.

Note 7- Subsequent Events

The Organization’s management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur far potential recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements through December 12, 2024, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has determined that there were no subsequent events or transactions
that would have a material impact on the current year financial statements.

17



Supplementary Information
June 30, 2024

Wonderful College Prep Academy

eidebailly.com



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Pass-Through

Federal Financial Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Assistance Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Listing Number Expenditures
UU.S. Department of Education
Passed through Kern County of Education Special
Education Local Plan Area
Special Education {IDEA) Cluster
Basic Local Assistance Entitlement 84.027 13379 ] 482,279
Total Special Education {IDEA) Cluster 482,279
Passed through California Department of Education (CDE)
COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Il {ESSER) Fund 84.4250 15547 48,122
COVID-15 - Expanded Learning Opportunities {(ELO)
(ESSER IIl) Learning Loss 84.425U 10155 400,900
COVID-19 - Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant
ESSER Il State Reserves 84.425D 15618 46,782
COVID-19 - Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO}
Grant GEER Il 84.425C 15619 11,127
COVID-19 - Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO)
(ESSER lIl) State Reserve, Emergency Needs 84.425U 15620 30,336
COVID-19 - Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO)
(ESSER 111} ESSER 11l State Reserve, Learning Loss 84.425U 15621 298,767
COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary $chool Emergency
Relief 11l {ESSER Wl) Fund 84.425U 15558 1,467,637
Subtotal 2,303,671
Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected 84.010 14329 858,374
Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 84.367 14341 896,371
Title 1V, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 15396 68,963
Title Ill, English Learner Student Program 84,365 14346 9,706
California State Gear Up Program 84.334A 10088 1,459,806
Total U.S. Department of Education 5,275,170
1).5. Department of Agriculture
Passed through CDE
Child Nutrition Cluster
School Lunch - Section 4 10.555 13523 1,198,914
School Lunch - Section 11 10.555 13524 22,073
Local Foad for Schools 10.555 15708 17,455
Supply Chain Assistance Funds 10.555 15655 72,184
Subtotal 1,310,636
Equipment Assistance Grant 10.579 14906 6,859
School Breakfast Program - Severe Need 10.553 13526 482,734
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 1,800,229
Fassed Through California Department of Sacial Services
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 13529 1,175,023
Total L).S. Department of Agriculture 2,975,252
Tatal Federal Financial Assistance S 8,254,422
See Notes to Supplementary Information 18



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Year Ended June 30, 2024

WCPA - Delano
Regular ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth
Ninth through twelfth

Total regular ADA

Classroom Based ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth
Ninth through twelfth

Total classroom based ADA

WCPA - Lost Hills
Regular ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth
Ninth through twelfth

Total regular ADA

Classroom Based ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth
Ninth through twelfth

Total classroom based ADA

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Second Period Annual
Report Report
490.91 492,24
413.88 414.05
279.58 277.96
556.30 556.76
1,740.67 1,741.01
489,70 490.59
412.89 413.01
278.75 277.13
555.40 555.40
1,736.74 1,736.13
Second Pericd Annual
Report Report
157.64 157.60
135.08 135.06
84.36 84.35
130.34 129.03
507.42 506.04
156.99 156.92
134.65 134.73
84.36 84.06
130.18 12891
506.18 504.62

19



0T4 uonewlopu| Aejuawa|ddng 01 sa10N 395

paljdwo) 08T - /N 08T 5/0'69 - SL0'69 Z1 apelg
paijdwo) 08T - /N 081 5/0'69 5 SL0'69 1T 2pel
paidwo) 08T - ¥/N 08T G069 5 G/0'69 0T @peln
pajdwo) 08T - /N 08T G10'69 5 5L0'69 6 apein
0089 ZT - 6 59pEID
paldwo) 08T - /N 081 STT'S9 - SIT'So g opeio
pajdwo) 081 - /N 081 STT1'99 = STT'99 [ apein
paldwo)d 081 - v/N 081 STT'S9 . ST1S9 g apelo
paljdwo) 08T - /N 081 5/6°09 S S/6°09 § apein
paidwo) 08T - /N 08T $/6'09 B S/6'09 ¥ 2pein
000'%S § - 7 sapel9
paljdwo) 08T - v/N 08T G£6'09 - S/6'09 € apelo
paljdwo) 081 - V/N 08T S/6°09 S 5/609 7 9peto
pat|dwo) 08T - v/N 081 5/6'09 - 6.6'09 T apein
00F'0s € -1 Sapeln
paljdwo) 08T B ¥/N 08T S/6'09 - 5.6'00 000'9E uauedlapury
snieis o=l VET-I LWIo4 lepuaje) lepuz|ed paJayo VET-{ Wiod sainuiiy uawalinbay  [aAa] apelo
sheq paupaJl) sheg WIednn |[euoiyipel | sanunp paypal) saInully lenioy sa1NUly
(el 0 J2quinN sAe(] jeN1oY JO JIBQUINN |e101 JO 13qUINN ¥Z0C-£20T [86T-986T

oue|ag - ¥doOM

©20C ‘0 2unf papug Jeaj
3WI|_ [BUOIIINIISU| JO BINPAYDS

Awapedy dald 289]j0D [NJIDPUCM



12 uolleuLiol| Aleluawa|ddng 0] sa10N 235

paiidwo) - - v/N 08T S/0'69 - S/0'69 ZT apeln
paijdwo) - - v/N 08T 5/0'69 . SL0'BY 1T 2pelD
paldwo) - - v/N 08T 5/0'69 - S/0'69 0T apelD
paijdwo) - - v/N 08T SL0'69 - S.0'69 6 3peso
008’9 1T - 6 59petn
paldwo) - - v/N 081 061’79 - 06129 g opeln
palldwo) - - /N 08T 061°79 - 06179 [ apeis
paidwo) - - w/N 081 061'79 - 06129 g apeln
pajdwo) - - /N 08T 0S1'99 - 051'99 G 9pelD
paldwo)d - - v/N 08T 0ST°99 - 0ST‘99 ¥ epess
000'%S g - ¥ sepeID
pajjdwo) - - /N 08T 0S1'99 - 06199 £ apeln
pajidwon . : w/N 081 0ST'99 - 0S1°99 7 epelo
paljdwod . . /N 081 0S1'99 - 0s1'99 T 3pelo
00t'0S £ -1 sepetn
paljdwo) - - v/N 08T 0S1'99 - 0S1°99 000°9¢ uaiedispuny
snjels _uw._wto VET-T Wlod l_m_ucw_mu ‘_mvcw_mu _umr_mto YET- WO salnulln chEmh_j_umw_ _m>w._ mﬁmgmu
sheq paupal) sAeg YIRIUINN |evonipel ] SIANULA paypald seInWN |eniay sanul
|elo| JO JaquinN sAB(] |BN]OY O JaQUINN jeio], JO J1aguinn YZ0T-£207 /86T-986T

S{I1H 3507 - YdOM

70T ‘0F aunf papudj Jeap
auwi] |euoonalsu| Jo 8|npayas

Awapeay daid 833]|0D |NJI3PUOM



Wonderful College Prep Academy

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Summarized below are the net asset reconciliations between the Unaudited Actual Financial Report and the
audited financial statements.

Delano Lost Hilis Total
Net Assets
Balance, June 30, 2024, Unaudited Actuals $ 8,214,719 $ 2,342,241 S 10,556,960

Increase in
Cash 1,140,189 - 1,140,189
Refundable advance (365,604) - {365,604)

Decrease in
Cash - {1,140,085) (1,140,085)
Receivables (2,685,415) {358,732) (3,044,147)
Security deposit (8,789) - {8,789)
Property and equipment, net {13,850) (667) {14,517}
Operating lease right-of-use asset (30,017) {52,404) (82,421)
Accounts payable 3,072,914 1,533,049 4,605,963
Lease liability 30,016 52,404 82,420
Refundable advance - 269,230 269,230

Balance, June 30, 2024, Audited Financial Statements $ 9,354,163 S 2,645036 S 11,999,199

See Notes to Supplementary Information 22



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Combining Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2024

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Receivables
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Operating lease right-of-use asset
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advance
Current portion of operating lease liability

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Operating lease liability, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions

Total liahilities and net assets

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Delano Lost Hills Total

$ 4,994,780 $ 1,777,721 $ 6,772,501

8,971,497 2,928,870 11,900,367
374,613 57,443 472,056
14,340,890 4,804,034 19,144,924
3,673,376 257,891 3,931,267
44,032 100,304 144,336
3,717,408 358,195 4,075,603

$ 18,058,298 S 5,162,229 S 23,220,527

$ 3,138856 S 773,258 S 3,912,114

550,184 65,632 615,816
4,971,063 1,578,000 6,549,063
25,743 52,502 78,245
8,685,846 2,469,392 11,155,238
18,289 47,801 66,090
8,704,135 2,517,193 11,221,328
9,354,163 2,645,036 11,959,199

$ 18,058,298 S 5,162,229 5 23,220,527

23



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Combining Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Delano Lost Hills Total
Support and Revenues
Local Control Funding Formula S 26,480,974 S 7,685,282 5 34,166,256
Federal revenue 6,308,729 1,948,127 8,256,856
Other state revenue 11,032,922 2,928,564 13,961,486
Local revenues 3,000,828 1,227,783 4,228,611
Total support and revenues 46,823,453 13,789,756 60,613,209
Expenses
Program services 40,415,653 11,622,500 52,038,553
Management and general 5,249,317 1,562,757 6,812,074
Total expenses 45,664,970 13,185,657 58,850,627
Change in Net Assaets 1,158,483 604,099 1,762,582
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 8,195,680 2,040,937 10,236,617
Net Assets, End of Year S 9,354,163 S 2,645,036 S 11,999,199

See Notes to Supplementary Information 24



Wonderful College Prep Academy

Notes to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2024

Note 1- Purpose of Supplementary Schedules
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule} includes the federal award activity
of the Organization under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2024. The
information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations

Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the
Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of the Organization.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. When applicable, such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain

types of expenditures are not ailowable or are limited as to reimbursement. No federal financial assistance has
been provided to a subrecipient.

Indirect Cost Rate
The Organization has not elected to use the ten percent de minimis cost rate.

Food Donation
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in this schedule at the fair market value of the commaodities received and
disbursed. At June 30, 2024, the Organization had no food commodities in inventory.

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the Organization.
The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments
of State funds are made to local education agencies. This schedule provides information regarding the
attendance of students at the Organization.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the Organization and
whether the Organization complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 47612 and 47612.5, if
applicable.

The Organization must maintain their instructional minutes at the 1986-87 requirements, as required by
California Education Code Section 47612.5.

25



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Notes to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2024

Reconciliation of Annual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets reported on the unaudited actual
financial report to the audited financial statements.

Combining Statement of Financial Position and Combining Statement of Activities
The combining statement of financial position and combining statement of activities are included to provide
information regarding the individual programs of the charter schools within the Organization and are presented

on the accrual basis of accounting. Eiminating entries in the combining statement of financial position and
combining statement of activities are for activities between each charter school.

26



l Other Information
June 30, 2024

'| Wonderful College Prep Academy

\ eidebailly.com



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Local Education Agency Qrganization Structure {Unaudited)
June 30, 2024

ORGANIZATION
Wonderful College Prep Academy (the Organization) operates two schools: Wonderful College Prep Academy —

Delano {Charter Number 1078) grades transitional kindergarten through twelfth grade and Wonderfu! College
Prep Academy — Lost Hills {Charter Number 1851) grades transitional kindergarten through twelfth.

GOVERNING BOARD

MEMBER OFFICE TERM EXPIRES
Samer Mohamed Board President June 30, 2025

Ernie Unruh Board Member April 27, 2027

Kiyoshi Tomono Board Member January 31, 2025
Imelda Valdez Board Member August 23, 2026
Nanci Villasana Board Member July 23, 2024

ADMINISTRATION

Mike Romero Chief Business Officer

27



Independent Auditor’s Reports
June 30, 2024

Wonderful College Prep Academy

eidebailly.com



EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Governing Board
Wonderful College Prep Academy
Delano, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards}, the financial
statements of Wonderful College Prep Academy {the Organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 12, 2024,

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

What inspires you, inspires us. eidebailly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd., Ste 300  Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-3831 TGO 446 4410 F 909 466 4431 EOE

28



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disciosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required tc be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal contro! or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ci*«,éﬁca%zmé

Rancho Cucamonga, California
December 12, 2024

29



EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal
Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Governing Board
Wonderful College Prep Academy
Delano, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Wonderful College Prep Academy’s (the Organization) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Organization’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2024. The Organization’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

in our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Qrganization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization’s federal programs.

What inspires you, inspires us. eidebailly.com
0681 Foothl Bivd, Sle 300 Rancho Cucamonge, CA 91730.3831 7909 464 4410 F 909.466 4431 ECE

30



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Organization’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

« Obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal contro! over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over complionce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

31



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

éﬁ«/ﬁezgzuﬁ

Rancho Cucamonga, California
December 12, 2024

32



EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance and on Internal Control Over Compliance

Governing Board
Wonderful College Prep Academy
Delano, California

Report on Compliance
Opinion on State Compliance

We have audited Wonderful College Prep Academy’s (the Organization) compliance with the
requirements specified in the 2023-2024 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and
State Compliance Reporting, applicable to the Organization’s state program requirements identified
below for the year ended June 30, 2024.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that are applicable to the laws and regulations of the state programs noted in the
table below for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards), and the 2023-2024 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization’s state programs.

What inspires you, inspires us. eidebailly.com
10681 Foothil Bivd., Ste 300 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-3831 7909 466 4410 F 909 466 443]  EOE

33



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Gavernment Auditing Standards, and the 2023-2024 Guide for Annual Audits of
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting will always detect a material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Organization’s compliance with the requirements of the state programs
as a whole.

in performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 2023-2024
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the compliance reguirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances.

« Obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal contro! over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 2023-2024 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal controls over
compliance. Accordingly, we express no such opinion; and

e Select and test transactions and records to determine the Organization’s compliance with the
state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

2023-2024 K-12 Audit Guide Procedures Procedures Performed

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

Attendance Not Applicable
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Not Applicabie
Kindergarten Continuance Not Applicable
Independent Study Not Applicable
Continuation Education Not Applicable
[nstructional Time Not Applicable
Instructional Materials Not Applicable
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers Not Applicable
Classroom Teacher Salaries Not Applicable

34



2023-2024 K-12 Audit Guide Procedures

Procedures Performed

Early Retirement Incentive

GANN Limit Calculation

School Accountability Report Card

Juvenile Court Schools

Middle or Early College High Schools

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
Comprehensive School Safety Plan

District of Choice

Home to School Transportation

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools

Propaosition 28 Arts and Music in Schools

After/Before School Education and Safety Program
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Local Control and Accountability Plan

Independent Study-Course Based

Immunizations

Educator Effectiveness

Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G)

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

Transitional Kindergarten

Charter Schools

Attendance

Mode of instruction

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction
Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based

Charter School Facility Grant Program

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicahle
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable
Yes
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable
Yes
Not Applicable

The term “Not Applicable” is used above to mean either the Organization did not offer the program
during the current fiscal year, the Organization did not participate in the program during the current
fiscal year, the program did not exceed the threshold for testing, or the program applies to a different
type of local education agency.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance rega rding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a
compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might he material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 2023-2024 Guide
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this
report is not suitable for any other purpose.

é‘«,«ﬁ% L7

Rancho Cucamonga, California
December 12, 2024

36



Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2024

Wonderful College Prep Academy

| eidebailly.com



Wonderful College Prep Academy

Summary of Auditor’s Results
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued

Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major program
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516(a)

Identification of major programs

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Unmodified

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified

No

Federal Financial Assistance Listing

Title I, Part A - Basic Grants Low Income and Neglected
COVID-19 Education Stabilization Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

State Compliance

Internal control over state compliance for programs
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for programs

84.010
84.425C, 84.425D, 84.425U

$750,000

Yes

No

None Reported

Unmaodified

37



Wonderful College Prep Academy
Financial Statement Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2024

None reported.

38



Wonderful College Prep Academy

Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

None reported.

39



Wonderful College Prep Academy

State Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2024

None reported.

40



Wonderful College Prep Academy

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2024

There were no audit findings reported in the prior year’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

41



